
PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE  

& 

FORMAL  

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS - #1 

SOLICITATION Nº 19PA1020Q0004 

NCMR ROOF PROJECT 

 

The U.S. Embassy Asuncion convened a pre-proposal conference on Wednesday July 22th, 2020 at 

08:00am for the above referenced solicitation “NCMR ROOF PROJECT”.  Five firms participated in this pre-

proposal conference: INGENIA SRL, AGB CONSTRUCTORA, BENTAK, ABH EMPRESA CONSTRUCTORA and 

CABRI SA.  The questions and answers below are responsive to the inquiries received at and after this 

meeting.  Prospective bidders have an additional opportunity to submit questions to the Embassy 

regarding this solicitation.   

 

QUESTION 1 

Will the US Embassy provide the drawings in AUTOCAD Format?  

Answer: Drawings will be provided in AUTOCAD format only to the awarded contractor. 

 

 

QUESTION 2 

Will the US Embassy provide any additional spreadsheet? 

Answer: No 

 

 

QUESTION 3 

Can the awarded contractor use the parking lot located next to the CMR Residence? 

Answer: Yes. 

 

 

QUESTION 4 

Does the Roof repair project include the repair of the existing Parapets? 

Answer: Yes, Roof replacement SOW requires the repair of interior parapet walls and application of 

acrylic wall coating according to specification section 011100.1.1A.1e & 011100.1.1B8. Additionally, 

localized exterior façade repairs are outlined in specification section 011100.1.1D and on drawing sheets 

A201 & A202. 

 

 

QUESTION 5 

Please specify the date and time of delivery of the offer, and if it can be delivered digitally to an email 

address to be provided by the embassy. Or if it shall be physically delivered? 

Answer: Due date for submission of offers is August 14th at 12:00pm. Offers shall be sent electronically at 

asuncioncontracting@state.gov  

 

 

mailto:asuncioncontracting@state.gov


QUESTION 6 

Where the awarded contractor will install the portable toilets? 

Answer: Portable Toilets can be installed at the parking lot located next to the CMR Residence 

 

 

QUESTION 7  

Since the entire work will be done in outdoor areas, and considering that for a good application of the 

products, the area being repaired must have the lowest possible humidity. In case of rain, we will not be 

able to work and nor the following days until the area being repaired is completely dry. Contracts normally 

include justified delays up to two days after a significant rain. How this contract will consider this? 

Answer: Contract includes excusable delays which include weather related delays. Some portions of work 

can be performed immediately following a rain storm and it is up to the contractor to coordinate various 

project tasks to minimize delay. 

 

 

QUESTION 8 

Could we visit the CMR again? We want to go with the staff whom we would work, this is just for a deeper 

inspection of the affected areas. 

Answer: Additional site visits will not be permitted before award. Following award, pre-construction visits 

may be coordinated with Embassy staff. 

 

 

QUESTION 9 

During the site visit we noticed many cracks on the inside of the “parapets”. We believe that it is not really 

necessary to remove all plaster but a good painting. How should we quote this? With paint? Or, is it 

preferable to remove all the plaster and apply a protective layer? 

Answer: See response to question 4. Full removal of plaster is not included in SOW. However, substrate 

preparation and application of acrylic coating on parapet walls is detailed in specification section 099100. 

 

 

QUESTION 10 

We understand that we must return Mr. Ambassador's house as we received it; therefore, do we need to 

include a general repainting of the exterior of the house in our offer? 

Answer: No, repainting of exterior façade shall be localized to small areas of façade repair outlined in the 

specifications and drawings. Any additional damage to the façade or residence as a result of construction 

activities will also need to be rectified at the CONTRACTOR’S expense.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



QUESTION 11 

There are also many works that will affect facades such as installation of the "scuppers". These sections 

will be affected and so that the textured paint. Considering that the textured base paint could not be 

"patched". Shall we reapply the textured paint on the entire affected wall/face? 

Answer: Cutting of scuppers is to be performed in a controlled method to minimize damage to exterior 

façade. Whole walls are not anticipated to require retexturing or repainting but only areas affected by 

new work or designated for localized repairs. 

 

 

QUESTION 12 

Nowhere in the drawings nor the Scope of Work is stated that we shall increase the size of the downspouts 

of the gutters. This was mentioned during the site visit. Shall we consider this as part of the project? 

Answer: New conductor heads and downspouts are present in select locations. See details 2 & 5 on drawing 

sheet A505 and specification section 076000.3.3D. Enlargement or replacement of existing gutters and 

downspouts is not included. 

 

 

QUESTION 13 

In Drawing A-202, keynotes are marked where there are specified sectors to work. Could you please 

provide a picture of section 5-A202 because we could not access that Area? 

Answer: 

                 
 

 

 

QUESTION 14 

In case we find unforeseen events during the construction, how should we proceed? Shall we consider a 

percentage of the total of the offer for unforeseen events? 

Answer: Unforeseen conditions are to be reported to the COR via a “Request for Information” (RFI) to be 

responded to by the COR and Technical Project Manager. Unforeseen conditions confirmed to be outside 

the scope of work will be handled by modification to the contract and requests for proposals for additional 

work. 

 

 

 



QUESTION 15 

Are the "capsheets" stated in the specifications made of galvanized sheet metal? Any minimum thickness 

required? 

Answer: Assume the question is referring to the new roof type descriptions in  section 011100.1.1 which 

refer to a “Modified Bitumen Capsheet”. This is NOT sheetmetal , but rather a modified bitumen top ply 

and is detailed in specification section 075216 and on Drawing sheet A301 wher eit details the NEW roof 

systems. 

 

 

QUESTION 16 

In sheet A503, detail 2 A503 roof cricket specifies that it goes at the junctions of the m-1 and m-3 roofs. 

Will there be a 3D detail for a better understanding of how that detail goes? 

Answer: No, the referenced detail is shown in section and the cricket is shown in plan on sheet A103. Please 

search “Roofing Cricket” if unfamiliar with the term. Cricket installation is also outlined in specification 

section 061000.3.4 

 

 

QUESTION 17 

We have found some local options for the materials needed, we I would like to know if they comply with 

the requirements: Elastomeric coating Ceilings. A-b-c-d-e-f-g-h-i-j-k. For this area, the SIKA company 

recommends two products. The first is a SIKALASTIC 612 liquid membrane that comes in a light gray color. 

The second is SIKALASTIC TRAFFIC SYSTEM, which is indicated for transit. They come in gray. In all cases 

they recommend their application of bidim VP 05 fabric and that it would be a polyester reinforcement 

and not fiberglass. 

Answer: Product submittals are typically submitted and approved following contract award. However, the 

Sikalastic 612 is an acceptable coating system and polyester reinforcement is acceptable in lieu of 

fiberglass.  

 

 

QUESTION 18 

Glass Ceilings (skylight): 

a) What are the technical specifications or procedures to be performed? 

b) In case of maintenance of the joints, what would be the recommended material? 

c) Shall we replace the glass for a new one? 

b) Are the metal grills of the skylights maintained? 

Answer: No work is proposed to the skylights other than what is detailed in detail 6/A504. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



QUESTION 19 

Insulation and terminations: 

a) Thickness required for the membranes. 2 layers of asphaltic membrane are required, the first with 

fiberglass reinforcement and sandblasted finish (not talking about thickness), then the second layer must 

be with geotextile reinforcement and porous finish. Is this interpretation correct? 

b) Scope of work on parapets, we do not find in the details of finishing, but we do have about 10 days of 

work on the facade. What would be the desired finishing on the facade? 

Answer: 

a. The modified bitumen roof system specified for the sloped roof areas is composed of  

1. Self-adhered Base Sheet – See Sopralene Stick by Soprema for acceptable product 

description. 

2. Granular Surfaced Modified Bitumen Cap Sheet (Cold Applied) – See Sopralene 180 FR 

GR by Soprema  for acceptable product description. 

b. See answers to questions 4 and 9 referring to parapet work. Façade work is outlined in 

specification section 030100 and 099100. 

 

QUESTION 20 

Downpipes and gutters 

a) Will existing gutters be reused? Or, shall we replaced them with another material? 

b) If not, shal the awarded contractor include the resizing of the downspouts of the gutters in the offer? 

c) In case of modifying the downspouts of the gutters, how we would proceed in the interior areas of the 

house? 

d) Would the downspouts of the gutters have protective covers or filters to prevent the entrance of leaves 

or others that clog the system? 

Answer: See answer to question 12 for extent of gutter/downspout work. 

 

 

QUESTION 21 

Existing and Unforeseen. 

a) Please provide a drawing or list of existing leaks, humidity and other existing construction pathologies 

related to the project for future intervention. 

b) Procedure in case of detecting a positive COVID on site. 

c) Would it be possible to visit the work with specialized contractors for each job (Masonry and insulation)? 

Answer: 

a. No, project manual shall remain as-is. Location of existing leaks and humidity is not relevant as 

the contract documents outline a full roof replacement rather than localized repairs. 

b. Procedure to be outlined in contractor’s submitted site safety plan. 

c. No, See answer to question 8. 

 

 

 



QUESTION 22 

Doubts about the specifications: In section 1.6 "Dimensions and Quantities" we request to verify the 

measurements in site before sending the offer. Is that possible? 

Answer: See answer to question 8. Contractors were given the opportunity to view the site during the 

previously scheduled site visit. Contractors should have brought tape measures. 

 

 

QUESTION 23 

What are the requirements for preparing the work file ("as built" drawings)? 

Answer: As Built drawings are not required as part of this solicitation. 

 

 

QUESTION 24 

Will a user manual be required for post-delivery work maintenance? 

Answer: A user manual is not required as part of this solicitation. 

 

 

QUESTION 25 

What would be the final destination of the removed materials? (tiles, badgers, gutters etc.) 

Answer: THE TRASH. See specification section 024119.3.4 

 

 

QUESTION 26 

What would be the type of wood to use to replace the wood deck and wooden roof accessories? (the EETT 

say Abeto, but in Paraguay we do not have that species), We suggest using a soft wood such as pine. 

 
Answer: See specification section 061000 for lumber types. Pine is an acceptable material for wood nailers 

however, the wood deck is to be exterior grade plywood. 

 

 

 



QUESTION 27 

How would the disassembly and assembly of the equipment and trays for air conditioners considering the 

work required? 

Answer: See specification section 230510 for temporary electro-mechanical disconnects. All disconnects 

are to be coordinated in advance with Embassy facilities staff and COR. 

 

 

QUESTION 28 

The exterior electrical boxes without covers. Shall we keep them in the same place? Shall we relocate 

them? Or, we should just close it with plastic covers? 

Answer: Replacement or alteration of exterior electrical boxes is not included in roof replacement SOW.  

 

QUESTION 29 

We found that no local suppliers guarantee us the import of the material (bitumen cap sheet) within the 

required timeframe. Despite the product Asphalt shingle is not a membrane, we wonder if it could be a 

suitable alternative to what is requested for this project. We attach images and product specifications 

below.  

 
Answer: NO, asphalt shingles are NOT an acceptable alternative to the specified membrane roof system. 

60 days is built into the contract period of performance for material importing. Materials may be ordered 

following their approval on the submittal list and issuance of a limited notice to proceed to purchase the 

approved material. 

 

 

QUESTION 30 

Could you please send the pictures taken during the site visit? 

Answer: Yes 

 

 

 

 



QUESTION 31 

In the virtual conference, it was mentioned a deadline of 60 days for the completion of the work but when 

adding the days that the SUMMARY OF WORK proposes, we found more than 60 days. Could you please 

confirm the maximum work time estimated for onsite? 

Answer: 60 days is the specified ON-SITE period of performance. The whole project period of performance 

is 300 days as it includes extensive pre-construction activities such as submittals, material procurement, 

and shipping. 

 

*****NOTHING FOLLOWS***** 


